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Our Parish Mission Statement

Saint Michael and All Angels Church is the Anglo-Catholic Parish of the Diocese of Rupert's
Land. It is grounded in the Oxford movement and the riches of the Catholic revival in the Church
of England, through the faith that we believe and teach, the liturgy and spirituality that we
celebrate and practice, and in the service that we offer in Christ's name both to our community
and beyond.

The Sung Mass on Sunday is at the heart and center of our life together in Christ, which forms
and informs both our corporate and personal life of prayer, faith, nurture and outreach.

We maintain our Catholic heritage and witness chiefly through the faithful stewardship of our time,
talent and treasure. We are inspired and guided in our earthly pilgrimage by our firm hope of
eternal life.




Staff and Volunteers

Interim Priest-in-Charge:
Honorary Assistants:

Organist and Choir Master:
Licensed Lay Readers:

Chalice Bearer:
Rector's Warden
People’s Warden:
Treasurer:

Parish Secretary:

Father William Drake, tssf

The Reverend William J. Hutton
The Reverend Canon Ronald McCullough
The Reverend Brian Rountree
Mr. Andrew Rampton

Mrs. Anne Caird

Mr. Andrew Rampton

The Reverend Don Ross

Mrs. Diane Caley

Mrs. Mary Williams

Mr. Carl Harrison

Mrs. Rebecca Kozak

................................... And many others performing various ministries!

Worship

Central to the life of the parish is the celebration of The Mass. Parishoners come from all parts of
Winnipeg and beyond to participate in our beautiful and unique form of worship. The Sunday
High Mass and Feast Day High Masses are celebrated at the High Altar, using the English Missal
and the Canadian Book of Common Prayer. The Liturgy is celebrated facing East, and
incorporates a blend of both contemporary and traditional elements, including the lectionary,
intercessions, peace and incense. Vestments reflect the colours of the church year.

From September through June, Solemn Evensong occurs on Sunday evening, followed by the

Benediction of the Blessed Sacrament.



The Low Mass on Sundays and weekdays is celebrated in the Lady Chapel. The Lady Chapel is
the first in Canada to be dedicated to our Lady of Walsingham.

We are also the only parish within the city with a daily Mass, which occurs at various times
throughout the week.

The Parish Priest officiates at all Masses, excluding vacations and visits from the Bishop. The
Priest is assisted by a wide variety of individuals, including servers, licensed lay readers,
intercessors and readers. Guest preachers or speakers are invited at the discretion of the Parish
Priest.

Sunday services consist of:
* Said Mass at 8:00 a.m.
e Mattins at 9:45 a.m.
* Sung Mass at 10:30 a.m.
* Evensong and Benediction at 7:00 p.m

During the season of Lent, the parish hosts a pancake supper on Shrove Tuesday, inviting the
local neighbourhood to attend. There are usually two services on Ash Wednesday; one during
the day and the other at 7:00 p.m. Stations of the Cross occur every Friday evening throughout
Lent, with guest speakers or preachers speaking on a variety of relevant themes.

During Holy Week, a solemn vigil begins after the liturgy on Maunday Thursday, with parishioners
volunteering to pray and watch in the Lady Chapel for at least one half-hour each until the
morning of Good Friday. The Good Friday Service occurs at 1:00 p.m. The Great Vigil of Easter
is celebrated on Holy Saturday in the evening at 7:30 p.m. Easter Sunday services follow the
regular schedule, with the possible exception of the exclusion of Evensong and Benediction.

The Feast of St. Michael and All Angels (Michaelmass) is celebrated with a Sung Mass on the
Feast Day, Sept. 29", followed by a time of fellowship and a potluck lunch or dinner.

On the Feast of St. Francis, a service of Blessing of the Animals occurs in the church courtyard.
All Saints and All Souls services are traditionally held on the evenings of Nov. 1 and 2"

At Christmas, a midnight Mass is celebrated on Christmas Eve, beginning at 11:00 p.m.,
preceded by an informal time for carol singing at 10:30. The Christmas Day service is a sung

Mass at 10:30 a.m. Procession and High Mass mark Epiphany on Jan. 6", usually followed by a
time of fellowship and refreshment in the parish hall.



A Historic and Singular Place of Worship

From Canada’s Historic Places website:

DESCRIPTION OF HISTORIC PLACE

St Michael and All Angels Anglican Church, a tidy 1920 stone structure with an attached parish
hall, is nestled on a quiet corner site in a well-treed older residential area of south Winnipeg. The
City of Winnipeg designation applies to the building on its footprint.

HERITAGE VALUE

St. Michael and All Angels Anglican church is an exceptional and, for its time and Winnipeg
location, a rare example of Norman-influenced Romanesque architecture that draws on medieval
design precedents for its distinctive visage. The building’s unobtrusive basilica plan, subdued
limestone finish and simple detailing, reminiscent of older parish churches in rural England,
admirably suit its compact residential site and function of serving a High Church parish that
upholds traditional Anglo-Catholic theology, liturgy and ceremony. This facility also is valued for
its uncluttered, well-lit nave, Lady Chapel and exquisite stained glass. Organized in 1904 as a
suburban mission, St. Michael and All Angels is the second oldest High Church parish in Western
Canada. lts building, designed by H.W. Greene, retains much of its exterior integrity and through
post-fire interior rehabilitation since 1970, remains a vital and aesthetically singular place of
worship.

Source: City of Winnipeg Committee on Planning and Community Service Minutes, December 4,
1989

The church office is attached to the parish hall and used for office functions, choir practice and
storage. This space was formerly the Incumbent’s residence.

The Parish Hall was the original wooden church building, moved from its site across the street. It
was converted to a Parish Hall when the new church was built. The mezzanine area is used for
Sunday School, Choir and Servers changing room and storage.



The rectory is directly adjacent to the church. It is a two storey detached house with a basement,
fenced yard, enclosed front and back porch, detached garage and 2 additional parking spaces.
The house has 2 bedrooms on the upper storey — one with an attached study/den. There is one
bathroom on the 2" level. The main floor consists of a living room, dining room, kitchen and
entrance hall. The house was recently renovated, is in good condition, is currently furnished and
includes a fridge, stove, washer and dryer.




Our New Incumbent

We are seeking an Incumbent who will serve as a spiritual guide and shepherd to our parish. We
look to our Incumbent to teach, inspire and encourage us as we attempt to grow in faith, and to
express our faith through our lives and actions within our parish, families, neighbourhoods and
the broader community.

Our new Incumbent will need both energy and patience. As indicated by the information
regarding our Worship, the Incumbent is active in facilitating the many Services that occur
throughout the week and year. Because we had one Incumbent Father A.M. Klassen, for 35
years, we became accustomed to a certain way of doing things.

Much was accomplished during Father Klassen’s incumbency. In addition to the sacramental,
spiritual, educational, pastoral and administrative ministries that he fulfiled, numerous
improvements to the physical structures were achieved, made possible by the positive responses
form the parishioners to special appeals to raise the required revenues. These improvements
included:

* making the church accessible to all with the installation of an exterior ramp and the
construction of barrier-free washrooms

* re-pointing of the exterior stone work

* installation of new roofs, the construction of a new kitchen in the parish hall

* a completely new designed Sacristy

* all new pews

e Sanctuary chairs

e carpeting

* and painting of the interior.

Upon Father Klassen’s retirement, Father William Drake became our Interim Priest. Father Drake
has successfully introduced various changes to our form of worship during his time with us,
through his gentle and wise approach, and by drawing upon his many years of experience.
Although some of us find change more difficult than others, Father Drake has been instrumental
in helping us to loosen our grip on “how we’ve always done it.”

We hope for an Incumbent who is open to dialogue and discussion, while also having a strong
and established understanding and grounding in Anglo-Catholic theology and liturgy and
canonical law.

Pastoral care is important to the members of our parish, and the willingness and availability of the
Incumbent to visit those who are ill, in hospital, grieving, etc. is essential.

Not everyone agrees on everything all of the time, and the Incumbent’s ability to help people
resolve their differences in a manner that is consistent with our Christian faith is of significance.

As much as possible, we would like our Incumbent to support and participate in parish events.
We will look to our new Incumbent to help us to grow, address challenges, and to discern our

future direction. We would be pleased to welcome an Incumbent with a family, and expect that
he/she will reside in the rectory.

At a parish meeting in December, 2013, the following suggestions were given by parishioners as
opportunities to explore:



* Try some new things to attract young families

* Review the traditional Anglo-Catholic theology of Incarnation and the relevance to
our approach to the wider world (social justice)

* Explore educational opportunities that may appeal to the wider Anglican church

* Become more involved in Diocesan activities

* Explore creative revenue-generating opportunities

We identified the following as issues of concern:
* Aging congregation
* Low attendance at daily Mass
* Long-term financial viability
* Broader perception of the parish within the Diocese
* Sunday shopping, jobs and competing activities

A follow-up parish survey indicated that music, liturgy, spiritual growth, welcoming community and
preaching were the most important features of St. Michael and All Angels to current parishioners.
Within the next five years, many are hoping for an increase in the number of parishioners, and
growth in actions for social justice, spiritual development and the ministry of parishioners to each
other. (Complete results of the parish survey are available upon request.)

Our Parish Family

Our Parish Family can be described as diverse. We come from all over the city and beyond,
have assorted backgrounds and a wide variety of educational and employment experiences. A
high proportion of us are over 55 years of age, semi-retired or retired. For most of us, English is
our first (and only) language, although we do have a handful of people whose first language is
other than English. Some of us are life-long Anglicans; others have come from different
denominations, including Roman Catholic, United and Mennonite.

We see ourselves as friendly, welcoming, committed and hardworking. We work together to
ensure that all aspects of our communal church life are thoughtfully addressed and
accomplished. In addition to working together, we enjoy our time together during our weekly
fellowship and coffee hour after Mass, and at our various meetings and events. We celebrate
special events together, such as showers for newly weds or for new parents.



The Lady Chapel

Specific Activities and Aspects of our Parish

Archives

The archives consist primarily of church-related personal and social events experienced by our
parishioners. They also document memorials, the many valued furnishings of our cherished
building, and the beautiful clerical vestments.

There have been only four active archivists documenting parish history since the early church.

We now have eight complete archives books, dating from 1904 to the present. One volume at a
time is on display for viewing.

Altar Guild

The Altar Guild is responsible for the weekly Sacristy preparation, laundry, brass polishing and
ordering supplies.

Building Committee

The Building Committee is responsible for all aspects of church and rectory maintenance, upkeep
and repair. Considerable hands-on work is done by members of the Lee family, who are
experienced and skilled in numerous aspects of building and property maintenance. This work,
that is freely given, is an important contribution that keeps the costs of maintenance and repairs
much lower than it would be otherwise.

Confraternity of the Blessed Sacrament:

The Confraternity of the Blessed Sacrament (CBS) was founded in 1862 as part of the Catholic
Revival in the Church of England. Its aim was to be, first of all, a confraternity (brotherhood) of



men and women praying and working for a greater devotion to Jesus Christ in the Eucharist and
in the Sacrament of his Body and Blood.

It has spread to many places within the Anglican Communion of churches, especially in Great
Britain, Canada, Australia, New Zealand, Europe and parts of Africa. Wherever possible,
members of CBS meet together in local Wards for prayer, worship and mutual support under the
guidance of a priest as Ward Superior.

There is an active local chapter at St. Michael and All Angels.

Education

Under Father Drake’s guidance, an adult study group has recently been initiated. The Incumbent
regularly conducts confirmation classes as needed for both adults and youth who are preparing
for confirmation. People interested in learning/revisiting confirmation preparation materials are
also welcome to attend.

Sunday School

Approximately five children attend the Sunday School, which was reinitiated this past year,
utilizing the ACC Sunday school curriculum.

Hospitality and Coffee Group

A small group of people prepare and provide (donated) refreshments every Sunday after Mass,
excluding July and August. This is augmented by special birthday cakes and other treats that are
given by parishioners for special occasions. Coffee is ordered from a coffee company, which
provides a coffee machine and filters. The coffee hour is an important time for fellowship and
hospitality. It is also a time when informal presentations may be given on a variety of subjects
(ex. Representatives from Resource Assistance for Youth speak about the services that they
provide; the parish P.W.R.D.F. representative provides information about current activities, etc.)
In 2013, a monthly fundraising luncheon (replacing a coffee hour after Mass) was initiated by one
parishioner. This event is well-attended and supported by the parish.

Fellowship

The Fellowship Committee provides refreshments for funeral and wedding receptions.

Fundraising Events

Ten events are organized throughout the year, excluding Lent. Each event is organized by a
convener, who receives assistance from various parishioners.

Music
The music program at St. Michael's is made up of an Organist and Choirmaster as well as three

volunteer, unauditioned, mixed-voice choirs. The music of the parish is diverse, encompassing
both Anglican and traditional Roman Catholic repertoire. The church owns an Allen digital organ
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of three manuals and 65 speaking stops over four divisions. This instrument is approximately 20
years old and has been kept in excellent repair.

The Mass Choir (seven members) leads the singing of Masses on Sunday mornings, which
includes hymnody, plainsong propers from the English Gradual, and the day's setting of the
Mass. The parish uses more than a dozen Mass settings in its liturgical year, most of which are
led by the choir and also sung by the congregation. The choir regularly sings motets or psalms -
chanted in plainsong and Anglican chant - during the distribution of communion.

Pueri Mariae (ten members) lead the singing of Evensong and Benediction on Sunday evenings
throughout the year. This choir sings the offices completely unaccompanied, including Marian
antiphons, chanted psalms, canticles - with appropriate antiphons, and hymns. Hymns which are
not plainsong are regularly sung in four-part harmony. This choir includes many members of other
parishes and other denominations who are devoted attendees of the Sunday evening offices and
friends of St. Michael's.

The Festal Choir (eight members) leads the singing of Masses for those feasts which fall on days
other than Sunday, such as Epiphany, Candlemas, Ash Wednesday, Ascension Day, Corpus
Christi, etc. Often, the settings of the Mass sung by this choir are polyphonic and longer than
those used on Sunday mornings. The choir also leads the hymn-singing at these Masses and
chants the plainsong propers from the English Gradual, as well as singing one or more motets
during the service. This choir is also of an ecumenical nature, similar to Pueri Mariae, and draws
its membership both from the members of St. Michael's and other parishes and denominations.

Primate’s World Relief and Development Fund

The PWRDF representative receives and presents information regarding PWRDF initiatives to the
parish.

Servers Guild

Members of the Servers Guild assist with Mass throughout the year.
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Vestry

Meets on the first Monday of each month following Mass at 7:00 p.m., excluding July and August
to address the financial, business, legal and other matters of the parish. Members of Vestry also
serve in various other capacities, including as servers, building committee, fundraising Chair and
conveners, Hospitality and Coffee group, Altar Guild, Synod Delegates, Treasurer, etc.

Outreach Activities
The parish supports a variety of outreach activities and initiatives including:

The Winnipeg Convalescent Home: Located steps away from the church, the Winnipeg
Convalescent Home, a personal care home, is home to a number of parishioners, as well
as others who attend a weekly service of Mass or Mattins at the Home.

The Sisters of the Society of St. Margaret in Haiti: The parish has a long-established
relationship with the Sisters of the Society of St. Margaret in Haiti. The parish provides
financial support to the Sisters, and there is communication between the Sisters and the
parish regarding developments and activities in Haiti.

Resource Assistance for Youth: The parish recently donated items (parkas, socks,
blankets, etc.) to this organization, to be distributed to homeless youth.

P.W.R.D.F: One of the parishioners is a P.W.R.D.F representative. She keeps the
parish informed of various activities and fundraising opportunities through P.W.R.D.F.

Wechetowin: One of the parishioners is the Chairperson for this organization that
provides services to Aboriginal people in need of support. The parish has collected items
to donate, as well as providing some financial support.

Winnipeg Harvest: The parish collects food for people in need throughout the month of
October and delivers it to this food distribution organization.

Annual Neighbourhood Barbeque: The parish hosts an annual barbeque for the
neighbourhood, inviting people to share in refreshments, meet parishioners and tour the
church, if interested.

Shrove Tuesday: Every Shrove Tuesday, collections or donations are gathered for
distribution to various charities.

Our Finances

Our Parish Treasurer manages our financial affairs, in consultation with the Corporation and
Vestry, and with the assistance of an external retired accountant and auditor who is also a former
parishioner.
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Like many parishes, St. Michaels struggles with the ramifications of an aging congregation and
challenges of attracting new people to join us. While we remain financially viable, expenses have
exceeded revenues since 2007, with the exception of one year. The annual accumulated losses
average $7,000.

St. Michaels has been blessed by generous past and present congregants and maintains an
investment position that is approximately 80% of the total annual projected revenues for 2014.
These funds are invested in mutual funds and Guaranteed Investment Certificates (GICs). We
changed financial institutions in 2013; at this time, 75% of the GICS are invested with the
previous institution, and will be transferred to our new institution at their individual maturity over
the next three years.

For the past few years, we have utilized the services of the Diocese of Algoma to provide a
monthly preauthorized payment service for those parishioners wishing to donate electronically.
At present, 19 people are enrolled on the service (approximately 20% of the total 2014 projected
revenues). To reduce the number of cheques issued, the parish utilizes preauthorized payment
services for natural gas, hydro, telephone/internet and water utility payments. We are enrolled on
a monthly budget program for natural gas and hydro.

The Incumbent is the only salaried employee of the parish. The Choir Master/Organist is on
contract, and the Vestry Secretary receives a modest honorarium. Personnel costs are near 60%
of total budgeted revenues.

The annual maintenance costs of the church and rectory are approximately 10% of the total
revenues generated.

We have always taken pride in providing our pledge to the Diocese. Although we have been
unable to attain the recommended percentage, we have never been far off.

Bank statements are reviewed by the parish treasurer and external accountant. Financial
statements are provided for discussion at vestry meetings monthly, excluding July and August.

An audited financial statement will be provided for the 2013 fiscal year.

Within the Diocese

Bishop: The Rt. Rev. Donald D. Phillips

Identity Statement of the Diocese of Rupert’s Land

We are an intentional faith community celebrating a living Anglican tradition. As a diverse people,
united in God’s love, we are bound together through sacramental worship, the depth of which
inspires us to nurture one another, propels us to proclaim the Good News of Jesus Christ and to
respond compassionately to the needs of the world around us. Adopted 106th Session of Synod,
November, 2004

The Diocese of Rupert’s Land is home to approximately 11,000 Anglicans registered on Parish
rolls, worshipping in sixty-six parishes and three missions. Twenty-eight parishes and three
missions are found within the city of Winnipeg.
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The history of the Diocese extends back to the fur trade and Red River Settlement. It is rooted in
a long-standing partnership between Aboriginal peoples and European traders and settlers.
Rupert's Land is where you will find the earliest churches in Western Canada. Located in
southern Manitoba, the Diocese of Rupert’s Land is bounded on the south by the U.S. border and
extends north into the Interlake Region past Fairford. The western boundary reaches into the
Pembina Hills and includes Portage la Prairie. In 2014, the eastern boundary will extend to
Atikokan, Ontario.

The diocese is oriented to carrying forward the mission of Jesus Christ. Meaningful inner-city
missions, innovative Aboriginal ministries, forward-looking urban and rural models of ministry,
liturgy with integrity and warm and inviting communities are some of the distinguishing features of
the life of the diocese.

The diocese encourages parishes to support fairly traded items, the ethical use of our resources
and endeavor to reduce our carbon footprint.

Members of the Diocese are encouraged to seek a greater understanding of the Indigenous
Peoples within Canada and to support those peoples in their ongoing efforts for their inherent
sovereignty and fundamental human rights as peoples to be respected by understanding the
reality that we are all Treaty People. (Endorses the UN Declaration on the Rights of Indigenous
Peoples adopted by the UN General Assembly on 13 September 2007.)

Currently, the Diocese of Rupert’s Land is divided geographically into three Archdeaconries, each
with an Archdeacon providing administrative oversight. Each Archdeaconry is made up of two
Deaneries, each overseen by a District Dean.

St. Michael and All Angels is in the Winnipeg — St. John Archdeaconry, Forts/Seine River
Deanery and is overseen by The Venerable Jennifer Sisson

Neighourhood Demographics

“ Come live the Corydon lifestyle. The Corydon area may just be the most exciting
community in which to live. Discover Corydon and start living ‘la vita bella’.
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g o the Avente

The church is located within a vibrant neighbourhood that is varyingly referred to as
Crescentwood or Fort Rouge. It is a short walk to Corydon Avenue, also known as Corydon
Village. The area offers easy access to a myriad of services and amenities within Corydon
Village, and in the nearby Osborne Village and The Forks.

Numerous restaurants, businesses, shops, and professional services line Corydon Avenue. The
area is a very popular destination for Winnipeggers and tourists, particularly during the summer
months when the outdoor cafes are usually packed to capacity and outdoor concerts,
entertainment and events occur throughout the warm months. Public transit is speedy and
reliable and bus stops are within easy walking distance of the church. Street parking is at a
premium in the summer, when the restaurants and shops are especially busy.
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The area includes a wide variety of housing types, including modest single-family dwellings,
grand historic houses and luxury apartments. It is situated in close proximity to Osborne Village,
Kingston Row, and Wellington Crescent, which have some of the most expensive housing in
Winnipeg. Itis also a quick bus ride downtown, and is within minutes of the St. Boniface Hospital,
Health Sciences Centre, and Misericordia Urgent Care.

Property values in the neighbourhood have risen significantly during the past few years, and there
is a low rental vacancy rate.

Churches in close proximity include:
e St. Ignatius Roman Catholic Church
* Gospel Mennonite Church
e St. Luke’s Anglican Church
* Crescent-Fort Rouge United Church
» St. George’s Anglican Church

Schools in close proximity include: La Verendrye (French immersion) and Earl Gray
Community clubs in close proximity include: Earl Gray, Crescentwood and River-Osborne

Shopping:

* Various specialty shops and restaurants are minutes away from the church.

* Professional services, including physicians are within walking distance.

* Rexall Pharmaplus and a 24-Hour Shopper’s Drug Mart are within walking
distance, or a short drive.

* Grant Park Shopping Centre is 2.7 kms. from the church. Numerous shops and
professional services are available. Sobey’s, located at 1150 Taylor Ave., is a 5-
minute drive.

The church is located 3 kms. from The Forks. Year-round, The Forks offers a striking array of
dining experiences, great shopping, a constantly changing slate of entertainment and events, and
many unique attractions that encompass the site’s natural, historic and man-made features,
including the Canadian Museum for Human Rights.
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APPENDIX A

HISTORY

THE PARISH OF ST. MICHAEL & ALL ANGELS

About the turn of the twentieth century, a group of laity formed an Anglo-Catholic Society to
promote the theology and liturgical practices of the Oxford Movement in the Diocese of Rupert’s
Land. Father Frank Smith, rector of All Saints’ Church, who was himself sympathetic to their
aims, asked them to take over a mission and to create an Anglo-Catholic parish.

In 1904 the members of St. Michael’s built a small wooden mission church on Mulvey Avenue
across the street from the site of the present church. One hundred and twenty people attended
the first service on 13 November 1904. The preacher was Father Smith.

The next few years saw a number of important milestones. In 1906 a priest, the Rev. J. B.
Haslam, was appointed to the mission. Starting on Low Sunday, 14 April 1907, the sung Mass
became the principal Sunday service while on 27 May of that year the daily Mass was instituted.
These were two important steps in the creation of an Anglo-Catholic parish. On September 23,
1910 St. Michael's mission became a parish with a small distinct boundary. This meant little in
those days (and even in the twenty-first century) as the Anglo-Catholics had to travel from any
districts to attend and support their new parish.

For the next few years the congregation worshipped in the mission church but they were planning

a parish church. They purchased property on the north-west corner of Hugo and Mulvey and
began to build in 1920.
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The foundation stone was laid on 17 June 1920 by the Very
Reverend Dean Coombes, representing Archbishop S. P.
Matheson.

Father Humphrey Scott Ram was their parish priest. They built the whole outside of the building
but on the inside they only finished the sanctuary, the choir, and the first two bays of the nave.
The rest waited for more money. They partitioned off the unused part of the nave and used the
south aisle as a cloister and approach to the finished part of the nave. They moved the mission
church to the new site, attached it to the parish church and used it as the parish hall. It's still
there, still the parish hall, but it is hidden under more recent changes to both exterior and interior.

The wooden high altar from the mission church and its altar stone are carefully preserved in the
new church as the altar of the Lady Chapel [the first in Canada to be dedicated to Our Lady of
Walsingham]. The high altar in the parish church is marble and its altar stone came from the
sanctuary of Pershore Abbey, an old Benedictine monastery in England.
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Our Lady of Walsingham on a corner shelf in the Lady Chapel

The architect, Henry William Greene, chose the Romanesque style for St. Michael and All Angels.
This style features round arches, a semi-circular apse at the east end, and a similarity in floor
plan to the basilica churches of the Roman Empire. Most Anglican churches are built in the

Gothic Style with the result that St. Michael and All Angels is the only Romanesque church in the
diocese.
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Fr. Ram left St. Michael’s in 1926. The next two rectors were Fr. Harold Flitcroft Hutton (1926 to
1928) and Fr. R.H. Thomas (1928 to 1930). After them the Cowley Fathers, the Society of St.
John the Evangelist, came to St. Michael’'s. The first was Father Ronald Palmer, who had
preached at St. Michael’s in 1929, and the second was Father William Charles Turney.

Father Turney came in November 1930 and stayed until 1961. He told people that he was an
Idiorrythmic monk, that is a monk living outside his community. He kept his three vows of chastity,
poverty and obedience but switched his vow of obedience from the Superior of his community to
the Diocesan Bishop. He did not have the title of Rector due to his membership in the S.S.J.E. He
always wore his cassock as an outward sign of his monastic vocation.

In his time, the interior of the church was finished and the priest’'s palace attached to the parish
hall was built. With the church buildings completed and paid for, the Most Rev. L. Ralph
Sherman, Archbishop of Rupert’'s Land, consecrated the parish church of St. Michael and All
Angels on Thanksgiving Day, 13 October 1947.

St. Michael’s suffered from two major fires. The first in 1959 did some $5,000.00 worth of damage
to the hall roof. The second, on 1 August 1970, damaged the interior of the church. It gutted the
music room, destroyed the organ, and damaged the roof. This was the work of an arsonist. In the
years since, the nave has been restructured, a new organ obtained, and improvements made to
both the interior and exterior of the church as well as the kitchen, the parish hall, the offices and
the three-bedroom rectory. The building was designated a Historic Building by the City of
Winnipeg on Dec 4, 1989.

While he was at St. Michael’s, Fr. Turney had an active ministry in the community with boys and
young men who were in trouble with the law. After he retired from St. Michael’s he moved to the
St. John’s Cathedral Boys’ School. He died in 1963 and is buried at St. Peter’s, Dynevor.

The next parish priest after Father Turney was the much loved Father Jack Graydon Gibbons. In
his time, the rectory and the revenue house west of the church were purchased. In addition to his
parochial responsibilities, he was also father confessor to many of the clergy in the diocese. With
the help of his ministry of discernment, many young men came to understand their own vocation
to the sacred ministry. From St. Michael’s he went to St. John’s College to be Chaplain and to
continue his work with those studying for the ministry of the church.
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His successor, Father Harold Leopold Hertzler, also taught theology at St. John’s College in
addition to his parochial duties. He had had a wide experience of the church before coming to St.
Michael’'s including a time as Priest Associate of St. Thomas, Huron Street, one of the leading
Anglo-Catholic parishes in Toronto.

The next rector, Fr. Arthur Michael Lloyd Klassen, came to St. Michael’s in 1977 from the Diocese
of Montreal. He had been associated with St. Columba’s and St. John the Evangelist, two of the
leading Anglo-Catholic parishes of the City of Montreal. In addition to his parochial duties at St.
Michael’'s, he devoted ten years to the Diocesan Retreat Association. He retired in August 2012
after serving 35 years.

Since Sept 2012, the parish has been led by an interim priest, the Rev. Will Drake.

The complete Clergy List is as follows:

Fr. F. B. Smith 1904-1906

Fr. J. B. Haslam 1907

Fr. G. H. Broughall 1907-1921

Fr.H. S. Ram 1921-1926

Fr. H. F. Hutton 1926-1928

Fr. R. H. Thomas 1928-1930

Fr W. C. Turney 1930-1961
r.J. G. Gibbons 1962-1972

Fr. H. L. Hertzler 1973-1975

Fr. A. M. L Klassen 1977-2012
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APPENDIX B

PAROCHIAL STATISTICS

ATTENDANCE - MEMBERSHIP

SUNDAY SERVICES: 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Sundays 52 52 52 53 52
Services 201 201 198 207 198
Total Attendance 3,128 3,093 2,888 3,046 2,928
AVERAGE ATTENDANCE 60.2 59.5 55.5 57.5 56.3
Total Communions 2,273 2,257 2,166 2,198 2083

WEEK-DAY SERVICES:

Services 274 273 274 271 266
Total Attendance 2,868 2,348 2,326 2,520 2534
Total Communions 1,498 1,375 1,345 1,544 1338
MEMBERSHIP:

Individuals 44 37 37 32 34
Families 27 26 23 23 22
Persons 111 102 96 93 96
Confirmed 104 94 88 80 83
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